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I,. ﬂ.lé‘. {:umpla,inané in this case, state that the following iz true to %ﬁ%ﬁ%@%ﬁe and

belief.
Beginning no later than in or around 2017 and uunﬁnuing through in or around 2018, at Chicago,

in 1he Northern Digtrict of Ilinois, BEastern Division, and elsewhere, the defendant violated:
Code Sectivn |

Title 18, United States Code, Scction did knowingly attempt to ecommit extortion, which

1951 exturtion would obstruct, delay and affect
commerce, in that defendant attempted to obtain
property, namely, fees arising from the retention of
his law firm, Klafter & Burke, {10 be puaid by
Company A and iig affiliate, with the consent of
Company A and its affiliate, induced by the
wrongiil use of sctusl and threatened fear of
ceonamie havm, and under color of official right

{Yfenze Deseription

This criminal complaint is based upon thesze facts:

X Continued on the attached sheet,

KDWALRD W, McNAMARA
Sperinl Agent
Federal Buroaw of Investigation
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swori to before moe and signed in my presence.

Diate: Janmary 2, 2019

City and state: Chicago, lllinnis
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
NORTHERN DISTRICT OF TLLINCGIS "
AFFIDAVIT
I, EDWARD W. MeNAMARA, being duly sworn, staie as follows:
1 I am 4 Special Agent with the Federal Bureau of _l_m-*eﬂt.igatinn, and have
been so cmployed since approximately 1992, My current responsibilities include the

* investigation of public corruption offenses. | have investigated, among others, cases

involving attempting, by extortion, to obstruel and affeet commerce, in violation of Title

18, ['nited States Code, Section 1951, Dharing my tenure as an FBI Special Agent, I_have-.

been involved in various types of electronic surveillance, physical surveillanee, and the
exeention of search warrants.

2. I have hecn involved in the investiga,.tiun of FDWARD M. BURKE
concerning his involvement in vielations of federal law, including violations of Title 18,
Unijted States Code, Seetion 1951,

3. The informalion eontained in tiﬁts AfTidavit iz based on my pa..rtici pation in
- this inveétigatiun;. agents’ roview ui couri-authorized interceptions | of wire
.cnmmuni(:&tions; the regnlts of physical suwrveillance; wilnegs interviews; review of
records U.ht_ﬂ.ined firom various putties; discussions with other law enforcement agents
with knowledge of this invéﬂtigm,iu:m; my training snd experience; and the training and
cxperience of other law enforeement officers with whom I have consulted. Since this

Affidavit is being submitted for the lmiled purpose of establishing probable cause as set
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forth herein, I have not included cach and every fscl known to me concerning this
investigation.
AL This Affidavit is made for the purpose of cstablishing probable cause in

support of a complaint charging TDWARD M, BURKE with Ia.t-tempi;iﬁg; by extnrti;nn,

to ohstruct snd affec), commeree, in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Seetion 1951,

h. Reference iz made to lm&_rﬂally vecorded eonversations in thig affidavit. In
certain instances, these cnnverau.ﬁuna are summarized and placed in eontext. My
understanding of these conversations (which olten appears in brackets) is aided by the
content and eontext of the converszations, my familiarity with the facts und circumstances
of this investigation, my cxperience us a law en‘l’:’m.‘_cnmént officer, the experience of other
law enforcement agents and officers in this investigation, my disenssions with other law
enforeement  officers, "and Di;hﬂl“ avidence 'deve]npcd during the .umlrse of this
inv_eﬂtigz_a.tiun. The L.Emes listed for recorded conversations are approximste. Further,
sumnmaries of the vecorded conversations herein do not represent ﬁn_zﬂized trangeripty
and may not represent the cntire conversalion that nmmcd between the identiﬁr&gd
individuals.

I. Summary of Probable Canse

fi, There is probable cause to believe that KDWARLD M, BURKE, an

Alderman for the City of Chicago, has engaped in attemipled extortion in violatlon of Title
18, United States Code, Section 1951, Specifically, in 2017, Company A sought permission
from the Cily of Chicago to remodel a restaurant, and Company A sought BURKE's

support for the building permit for this remodcling project. In June 2017, BURKE
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arranged to meet with Individual A und lndividﬁal E, Lwo exeéﬁt&ves from Company A,
and uged his position as an Alderman—inchading hig appz.trent ability to withhold his
official support (or the building permit and a rélated driveway permit—in order to
corruptly solicit uniawful personal financial ad}'a,nta.ge in the form of fées arizing from the

retention of BURKE’s law firm, Klafter & Burke, by Company A and its affiliates.

[ndividusl A understood that RURKE solicited Lhis husiness in exchange for BURKE's

help and gupport with obtaining the permits for the restaurant remodeling.

7. After this meeting; Company A did n.mi; deliver business to BURKE's law
firm as BURKE requested, 1o BURKE planned with Ward Employee 1 tn.l'jla}f “hard
ball” with Company A and ils execuﬁvea, in order to foree Company A to award tax

business to BURKE’s law firm, Tn Oetober 2017, at BURKEs direction, Ward Employee

1 cansed remodeling work on the restaurant to ¢come to a halt on the prelext that the -

restaurant did ﬁnt. possess all necessary permils for the remodeling, and thercafter
phatructed Company A's efforls o promptly obtain a d tfivmva},r permit from the City of
Chieago’s Depﬁ.rtment of Transportalion,

8-. Through this extortivnale condnct, BURKE c-ﬂ,used Indir;'idual A and
Individual B to travel to Chieago for the purpose of meeling wi1::-h him on or about
IJem.mher 12, 2017, During that meeting, which focused on awarding tax work Lo
BURKE's law firm, BURKE received sgsurances that his iaw firm would indeed receive
tux work, and after this mecting, BURKE dropped his opposition o the issuance of o
drivewsy permit. On or sbout December 18, 2017, BURKE cunﬁrﬁed that his law firm

was Lo receive property tax work for multiple properties operated by Company A in
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1 Ilihnis, and, on that sume day, Company A received approval fL_sr a driveway permil I'vom
the Department of Transportation. Furthermore, BURKE a.ls(.r solicited a campaign
contribution from Individual A for aﬁrﬁher politician—a contribution that Individual A
felt obliged to give in order to prevenl BU _RI{E’S further interference with Compuny A’s
restaurant. After the driveway permit wuas issued, Company A completed the
remodeling of the restaurant but did not hire BURKE’s firm.
II Facts Establishing Probable Cause |

A.  Background '

9. According to public veeords as well ag my training and experience, 1 know

the following: The City of Chicago is & munieipal corporation and & municipal subdivision

of the State of Illinois. The C‘ity’é legislative branch is the City Couneil, which is

comprised of fifty aldermen, each ol whom represents one legislative district or “ward.”
Aldermen are compensated and publiely elected. The Git;,r Couneil has the authority 1o
set poliey and pass ordinances and vesolutions velated to the reépnhsihﬂities of City
gnvernrnenf. Another [unction Aldermen provide iz their official support or non-support
for real extate development, projects propoged for land in thelr 1'eﬂpec£ive \;fawls, which
gupport or non-support cun he instrumental in securing necessary gmrer:nmental action
or inaction rela.{,in_é' to the proposed projects, as well as the assistance or non-asgiglance
of third parties concerning the projects. Aldermen are assisted in their official duties by
staff members, who often ure paid City employees. Aldermen have offices within City
Hall, which is located at 121 North LaSalle Sireet in Chicago, as woll as offices within

their wards.
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10, Public vecords reflect that EDWARD M. BURKH is Alderman of ihe
Fourteenth Ward in Chieago and the Chairmun of the Oity Council's Committee on
Finance. BURKE oceupies an office at City Hall, and maintuing an office in bis ward,
loeated at 2650 West 51st Street i n Chicago.

11, Public records further reflect thut BURKE is an a.t;tm'ne.}r and & partner in
the private law firm of Klafter & Burke, which ypecializes in r;e.ai estate tax assessment
work. Publicly avaﬂable records maintained by the Aliorncy Registralion and
Discip]jﬂm:"j Commission (FARDC™) reflect lhat BURKE is licensed to practice law in
Hinois and wag admitted to practice law in 1968, BUTREE"s registercd bus;iness address
with the ARDC is Klafter & Burke, 225 West Washington Stre;éi;, Suite 1301, Chicago,
linois 60606-2418. | |

B. Company A Executives Seek BURKE’s Approval to Remodel a
~ Restaurant.

12.  Individual A has been interviewed by law enforcement, and has provided
the following information.! Ii'ndin_ridu,a.l A ig an executive for Gampan}r A, which nﬁerﬂt{zs
over one hundred fasi-food restaurants in [Mlinois, including a fast-food restaurant in
BURKE’s ward. In 2017, Company A prepared to remodel the pestarrant in BURK '
ward, and an architect engaged by Company A woright a building permit from the City of

Chieago’s Department of Buildings to rermodel the restaurant.

! Individual A and Individual B were approached by law enforcement after the events
dizeussed hevein cecnrred. Individnal A and Individoa! B have been advised that they are

eonsidered to be victims of RURKE" illegal activity, and they cach have been provided

with a non-target letter by the government. Tndividunal A and Individual B are related.
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12. FEmail communications obtained {rom [ndividual A, as well. a¢ Trom
Inflividual B, anuther Company A executive, rellect that Company A’y archileet advised
individual B on multiple ﬂ.r;casiuns in or avout] May 2017 and June 2017, thal:; before o
building permit conld be issued, Company A would need to receive a signed ﬁldel'mﬂ..nic
: ﬂcknuwledg‘ement Letter from BURKR. The architeet provided Individual B with a
form Aldermanic Acknowledpment Lelier, to be signed by BURK_E, which providad, in
part: “1 am aware of the application for a building permit at the fvllowing address, Thave
no ohjection to its issuance.™ The architect advised that BURKE wanted 1o meet with
Individnal 13 to discuse trucks parking in the restawrant parking lot.

14, * During the course of the investigation of BURKE, the Chiel Judge and
Acting Chief Judge of the United Slates Distriet Court for the Northern Dislriet of
Tlinvis entered orders authorizing | the interception of wire communications over
telephone number (812) KXK-LIGIDG, # celluiar telephone used by BURKE (the “Target
Phone"). The recorded telephone convergations over .the Target Phone referenced

herein were made pursnant to these orders®

z Rased on information provided hy 8 Department of Buildings supervisor, I know that for

the remodeling project a signed Aldermunie Acknowledgement Letter is not a -

prevequigite Lo the izsnance of 4 building permit, bul iz inclided in the permit package
that the Department of Buildings provides for projects Hke the vemodeling of the

restaurant, and will serve to secelerate the proceszing of the permit by redueing a ten-
duy waiting period that the Department of Buildings chacrves prior to isanance of such a
petrnit,

B BURKW was identified as the uzcr of the Target Phone by, amung othor things, sell-
identification during the eourse of telephone calls, 88 well us comparison of the voiee of the
uzer of Target Phone wilh publicly available reeordings of BURKE. Individual A and
Individual B were identilied throngh varions means, including seli-identification.



15. | On or about Klay 28, 2017, al approximutely 5:12 pan (Session :]'JLHD’E';I,
BURKE received a voicerail on the Target Phone from Individual A regarding the
building pérmit. Specifically, Individual A gaid, “TF ydu could pleaze give me a call whet
you get a minute, when you get a chanee, [phone number redacted] Ah, we have an

" application that’s been made for rembd_el and [ think it’s sttek in your office or something,
S0, pleage give me a call, Tl pive }ruﬁ the details.”

16, On or about May 25, 2017, at app:r‘nxfm&t&ij 3:39 pm. (Sesszion #414),
BURKE received an incoming call on the Target Phone from Individual A. During the
call, BURK K and Individual A discussed tho huﬂdiné_; permit. Specifically, Individual A
said, “Ah, one of the things I was ealling zibmlt-, kd, is, ah, we huve a remodeling permil,
that we have applied for and I think itz in your m‘ea_emd, uh....” BURKE said, “Ts that
the one thal's at, ah, [address of restaurant redacted|? Tndividual A said, “Yos, yes,
ves,” BURKE suid, “Okay.” Indix:;idu:al A gald, “Hn, ah, hﬂﬂi(:&]ly, excuse me just a second,
wanl: to méet you to disensg a coneern ﬁ;ﬁth track parking that's in our parking lol.”

.HURKE said, “Yeah, that'’s been an ongoing problem there.” Individual A said, “Oh,

really? BURKE said, “Yeah. They have these big f'igﬁ that are parking f:-her'e.and |

parlking overnight aﬁd thai sort of stuff, ah, so some of the community activists are giving
me a little aggravation about it. Tell me about, ah, who's ah, w}m"_a on the ground here in
Chicago? Who's your key person?” Individual A said, “Ah, kﬂ;;r persun . ... You know
it's, ah, [Individual B|.” BURKE said, “Why don't }f.D'Ll have [Tndividual B] give me a eall
on this number, Maybe we Ldﬂ eet together next weelr and zee il we ean fron out what

the issues might be.” Individual A said, “Awesome, Sounds good.”

s "




17.° On or ahout June T, 2017, at approximately 4:32 p.m. (Session #642),

BURKE received an incoming call on the Target Phone from Individual B. During the

call, BURKE and Individual B discussed meeting about the building permit, Specifically,

BURKE said, “Well, I wag gonna snggest il you were here thal: you come out and see me

and talk about this issue 1 ndividual B waid, “Well, I'll be in, I'll, I'll be in Ghiuag(: ned
nexl week, but the following week. 8o I would love to come by and meet you and talk
ahmit things.” BURKH gaid, “Good. And [Tndividual AJ=aid thal be hoped to be up here
too and have, perhaps dinner and so thet'd be nice. Ilook forward to that . ... Um, now,

ah, is there something urgent? He mentioned gomething about permitting.” Individual

B sald, “Yes. So, we were trying to remodel a [name of restaurant| at ah—" At that

point, the eall wag minimized.

C. BURKE Plans to Obtain Private Benefits from Company A in the Form
of Fees Ariging from the Retention of His Law Firm, Klafter & Burke,

18 On or about June 8, 2017, at appruximatelj 11:47 am. (Session #932),
BURKE placed an outgoing call on the Target Phone to his City Hali office and spoke
with a City of Chicago employee on hit- gtalf (horeinafter referred to as “G‘itf Employee
1. During the call, BURKE asked City FEmployee 1 to find out what fnrivate law firm
handled real estate tax work for Company A. Specifieally, BURKE sa’ld,_“&ﬂd there's 4
Ireai.,am'ant] in the L]uca,i,i{m. I'Qdacted;]. Ah, jusl north of fstreet redacted| Strect on the

weusl side of the street.™ City Employee 1 said, “Uh-huh: Yeah,” BURKE zaid, “T want

* Rased on physical surveillanes condueled by law enforcement, I know the restaurant

operated by Company A in BUREE's ward iz located in the arca BURKE referenced

during this call. '
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somebody al the law nfﬁt_‘:e 0 check to see who's [lled with the assessor of the board on
that one.” |BURKE wunted City Employee 1 in contact his private law fiﬁn and aak
someone there toresearch what law firm mpmseﬁted the restaurant in prior ehallenges
to real estate taxes.] City Employee 1 aaid, “Omn ﬂmi'; [restaurant]? Olkay. An& Lh.at’s: the
une where yo're meeling—" BURKE said, “That’s where 'm ﬁuppnsed to be meeting
. those people next week?” City Empluyee 1 zaid, “.Yeuh, exactly.” |

19,  On ur_ahnut June 11, 2017, at approximately 12:42 P (Session #1050),
BURKE received an incoming call on the Target Phore from Individual f}.ﬁ During the
call, BURKE informed Individual C that BURKE wanted to get some business for .hig
private law firm from Individual A, Specifieally, Individual C said, “Happy Sunday, 'm
ahout to huve lunch with our friend, {Individual A), so T hope your lﬁeeting with him went:
well,” BURKE said, “Well, we haven’ met yet, Ah, he's supposed to be, ah, coming here
this coming week and we're gonna viril one of hiz sites and huve lanch.” Individual C
gaid, “Oh, good, roud, 'm aibnut to have luneh with him now. 1 know I'm in Canada after
my commisgion meeting on Tuesday, 80 I iigured if he wanted to grab laneh with me, I'd
hetter do it now. But Pl tel! him you're looking forward to it.” BURKE gaid, “Yes, and
give him the old, ah, ah. ...” Individual C said, “T'll let him know how important you are,”
BURKE said, “Well, yow're good to do that but I'd also like to get some ol hig lf_lw businces
and pel him in_vuh-ed, ah, here in, ah, in @h—” Individual C said, “Chicago,” BURKE

said, “Yeah, and, you know, he's a funintellipible] businessman here and you gotta, ah, be

F Aceording to publie sources, Individual O was a public oflicial in the aame state where -

Individual A and Individus]l B reaide,
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setive,” Individual C said, “Yeah. And he's pretty subsbantial. He's ilELE. a lot of, 2 lot of
sluff out there, right?” BURKE suid, “I hoar he's rrot 300 |restaurants] bere,” Individual
{ gaid, “TIuh. Okay, okay, yesh.,” BU RKE said, “So he's somebody you and I should,
ah—" Individeal C gaid, “Well, keep mc posted.” BURKE =said, “—try and, ah, a_h, gt
to know.” Individual ¢ =aid, “Okay. Good. Tm glad you called me about it, And, uh,
that's why I figured I'd work him. But I'll make sure he, he understunds it.” BURKE
said, “Good.” o

D. BURKE Corruptly BSolicits Tax Work for I-hs Law Fn‘m from
Individuals A and B.

20.  Individual A provided law enforcement with the following information.
Individual A and Ind ividual B agreed io meet with BURKE in Chicago because they
hoped FURKE would help with the building permit for the restawrant remodeling and
because Individual C had told Individual A that BURKE was gomeonc Indlndual A
should know. On or abooi Junc 14, 2017, individual A, Individual B and two other
.empluyees of Company A met 'w.ith BURKE and Ward Employee 17 al, the restaurant.”

During the meeting at the restaurant, BURKE Lalked ahout the fact that the City had

received complaints about Lrucks parking in an adjacent parking lot. Individual A

promised to lookinto the matter and address the issue by putting up “No Parking” signs.

¢ lased on the results of physicul surveillance, evidence seized from BURKE's ward office ,
and ecalls interecpted over the Target Phone, | know thal Ward Employee 1 works In
BURKE’s ward office,

On or about June 14, 2017, al approximately 11:85 am., law enforeement surveillance
obeerved a gronp of individualg, inetnding Individual A, Individual B, BURKE and Ward
Employce 1 meet in the area of the restaivant.

]
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BURKE alzo mentioned that » driveway permil was required for 'tilE remodeling of the
reslgurant. Individual A believed that BURKE was making up the driveway permit
issue Lo create s problem that they would have to mect with BURKE a_,bout.é

21,  Individual A furlher advised that, following the mecting at the restaurant,

 BURKE, Individual A, Individual B, and another Company A employee had lunch with

" BURKE st & country club.” BURKE avranged for the lunch. During the lineh, BURKE

told his puests about his Law firm, and expluined that his law firm handled pz-'upertj,r tax
reductions. Individual A said that s/he had not requeﬁted s pitch from BURKE about Eiﬁ
law firm, and had never mentioned to BURKU that s/he needed a property tax attorney.”
ndividual A advised BURKE that s/he had a law firm thal handled suc;h matters, hut
that Individual A would talk to another individual who haded property taxes und would
have that person reach out to BURKE. - |

922 Individual A advizsed law enforcement that Individual A “read between the
lines,” and that {L was Individuad A's understanding that BURKE.wﬂa soliciting legal

busginess in exchangoe for hiz help with permity for the restaurant.

g Tndividual B told law enforeement that BURKE hud mentioned driveway permits during .

the meeting. Individual B explained that sthe could not recall an issue about driveway
permits ever coming up tn connecllon with any other restaurant owned by Company Ain
the Chicago metropolitan area. Individual A advized law enforcement that B URKH wus
told both issties— the trock parking and the driveway permit—would be addressed.

! On June 14, 2017, at approximately 1230 p.an., surveillance observed a Blaek Crown
Vietoria in the parking lot of the Beverly Country Club, in Chieago, Illinoiz, Surveillance
had ohserved BURKE riding in this vehicle carfier that day on several oceasiong,
including at approximately 12:03 pm. Subgequent wire interceptions and seizurcs
discussed below confirin this meeting took place at the Beverly Country Clab.

1':' Individual 13 eonfirmed that BUREE’: pitch was smeolivited, and Individual B found it
odd that BURKE was sccling husiness [rom them due to his official position.

1t
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23, Individual A cxplained that Individual A did not take action to immediately
hire BURKE's law [irm boeanse it was rmt-. a priority. Tndividual A explained that.
Individual A believed th th the pEI'Init.if:.‘Es ke concerning the regtaurant had been regolved,
and that another {irm handled properly tax matters.

94,  According to records obtained from the City of Chicago’s Depurtment of
Buildings, the Cily issued a building permit for the restautant on or about June 20, 2017,

25, On or about June 27, 2017, at approximately 2:23 p.m. (Session #1779),

BURKE recetved an incoming transforred call on the Target Phone from Individnal B.

During the call, BURKE and Individual B discussed BURKF's assistance with obtaining

a permit fur the vestaurant, and Company A providing business to BURKE's private law '

firm. Specifically, HUR:KE auid, “Hello my friend in )eily redacted]. Huw;v are you?l”
Individual B said, “Good, Mr. Burke. How are you!” BURKE said, “Good, tm, T haven't
heard back. I'm just checking in with you” Individual B said, “Well, Mr. Burke, since
we lagt spoke, we did look at the survey and the truek parking iz part of our lot so we
confirmed that part.” BURKE said, “Oh, that's good. So T made you half a million bucks,”
Individual B hughed and said, “Yes gir, you did. Um, we have ordered %15:1:5 to pogl in
tha,t. area and t.huse.signs eame in on Friday. 1 have the. restanrant manager, the distriet
manager putting up the signage today and onee that sighage is posted, they're going to
send me pictui*cs and T cun send that over to you a3 well. They'll also be enfnrﬁng the no

overnight parkiﬁg now that we've going to 24 hours, and we will be making surc that if »

truck is there overnight, that we will be aaldng them 1o leave, and if we have uny 85168 .

{hen we will be calling the local poliee department to help us.” BURKE said, “Good, And

12
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um, we weire going to tulk about, the roal estate tax repmsenﬁaﬁun and you were going to
have somebody get in touch with me 80 we can expedite your permits.” Individual B said,
© “T'm gorry Mr. Burke. Whal was that last part?™ B URKE said, “You were going to have
somebody call me so we can he].p yvou make sure you get your permits for the remodeling.”
Tndividual B said, “Yes, 1 believe, I thought my avchiteet had reached oul to “;r,rﬂu. Um, I
guess, now that U'm talking to you, he has nﬁt-. 8o I will follow up with him.” BURKE
aaid, “Unless he's talked to my .assiﬁtant [Wa}‘d Employee 1], bul, 1 doubt that. Iimagine
he would have meancmed it to me.” Individual Hlsaid, “T will, I will lollow up with the
architeet and hm‘ré him reach out as soon as possible and I will have somebody from our
[city redacted] office reach out to you regarding the property taxes. That's not something
[ manage on my end.” HCRKE said, “Olay good, S0 I look forward to hearing from yon
and thanks for being responsive.” Individual B gaid, “No problem, Mr. Burke.” |

26. Individual B advised law enforcement that s/he fell that it was
inappropriate for BURKE to link obtaining lax work with BURKE’s oificial assistance
conecrning the dr.ix-'éway permits.!

27, Email communications produced by Individual A and Individual B reflect
that on or about June 29, 2017, Individuzal B rn-aceived an email from an t_amplu:,ree of

Company A, In that email, the employee advized Individual B that Ward Employee 1

u When initially interviewed by law enforcement, Individnal I listened to the.June 27, 2017,
" call. Individual B staled that s/he did not realize at the time of this call that there was u
“guid pro quo” arrangement between approval of the permits and giving BURKE’s law
firm worl, but that after listening to the call, Individual B realized that if BURKI's law
firm was uzed to handle property taxes, then there would nol have been problems with
the remodeling project, and that there was an “implied understanding” that they needad

touse BURKIYs law firm.
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asked that Individual B be reminded “thal, we nced to grel our permitting in order for the
drivewsy.”
28, [ know, bused on information obtained from the City of Chicago and publiely

available information, that the City of Chicago’s Department of Transportation issues

commercial driveway permits. In ovder to obtain a driveway permil for a pre-existing

driveway, an applicant must {:.umpletc an upplication, and among other things,
demonstrate that the driveway is insured and thatl the City of Chicagoe is insured with
rea.pect to the drivewsy approach. Tssuance of a permit for a pre-existing driveway does
not require any form of Aldermanic approval. The permit is renew.t_ad annually, and the
City of Chicago collecls an annual fee with each such permit.

20,  Informalion obtained lvom the City of Chicage’s Department of
Tram.spm*tati@ and NOT Employee 1, a City employee that helps administer the City’s

driveway permit program, reflects that the restaurant was located adjacent to 4 strip

mall. Tn 2012, another entity applied (or a perimit for nine new driveways associated with

this development, which was granted. ’]_‘hel2ﬂ12 permit wag reissued in 2015, and it did

not reqﬁi‘re any form of Aldermanic approval because it covered pre-existing driveways.

30. Rem:r‘ds obtained (rom Individual A and.I_ndix-'idual B, as ;,ve]l 4§ records

| ubtained from the City of U-hj::agln, reflect thu,t. Lhe ren}udeli_ng work on the iI.].Hid'EE and
outgide of 1.:}:13 restaurant did nol involve the consiruction of any new drivewsys.

E. BURKE Discusses Extorting Individusls A and B with Ward
Employee 1 Due to Their Failure to Award His Firm Tax Work.

31, On or aboul Angust 2, 2017, at approximately 11:27 a.m. (Eeﬁsifm # 3560), -

BURKE placed an outgoing eall on the Target Phone to Ward Employee 1. During this
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call, BURKE inquired ‘about the slatus of the restaurant remodeling  proj eclt.
Speeifically, B'[JRKE asked, “Did we ever hear any more Trom those [restaurant] people
on [street name redacted|?”’ Ward Employee 1 respimded, “No, not a word . .. Not a
word, It's ’ir'u.-'ilj, they called me aﬁﬂut three weeks ago talking about their remodeling,
ooy, I said, ‘Think the owners were supposed Lo get back wifh the ﬂlderma;n.a;_lle'r_' they
had lunch,” and that’s how Ileft it.” BURKE responded, “And the trucks are still ﬁa‘ﬂ'k&d
there.” Ward Employee 1 replied, “Well the trucky, they put up, the i:}ﬂdts, they put up
signs that say ‘No Parking’ from like 11 to 4 in..Lhe maorping, their closed hours. The
t:rllei{s, you know, béeause the trucks that are coming in there,,_ those are the guys that

are coming in there now, but there’s not supposed to he any trucks pa,rkeﬂ overnight.

And they've pot the big, and they've got the big signs ﬁp on that, I-went out there and I .

fook pietures, I've got the pictures showing it a—uys (rom 11 to 4 no parking.” BURKE
responded, “Oksy.” Ward Employee 1 asked, “So on that one, okay, but nothing else
ha.pfjened?"’ BURKR replicd, “No.” -

82, According to records produced by Individual A and ﬁldividua.l B, and the
archilect for Gnmim.n;; A, after the building permit was received on or sbout Junc 20,
2017, and a subsequent building pernﬁ_t wad Jsgued on or aboul Eieptemhér 22, 2017 (1o
account for a new general contractor on the rernodeling pruject}., re;”nndﬂ]ing work on the
restaurant began on or about October 13, 2017, |

© 83, On or sboul Octoher 24, 201 ’T,.at app}"nxima,tely 957 a.m. (Session #7441),
BURKE made an outgoing call on the Target Phone to Ward Employee 1. During this

call, BURKE and Ward Employee 1 direnssed interforing with the r;i:mmtinn of the
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vestaurant, Specifically, BURKE told Ward Employee 1, “I just drove by the
[restaurant] . . . And there appears to be, ah, rerrmdeling work going on there. Weren't
we supposed m be contacted, sh—" Ward Employec 1 reépunded, “Yeah” BURKE said,
“__hefore they did any work? What ab, what happened there?” Ward Employee 1
responded, “Let me ah, I dun’L.Imnw. Let we get out there, cause ah, find out, they
weren't supposed to do anything, No.” BURKE asked, “What wasg the issue? Why, why
was I ... able to hold it up?” Ward Employee 1 replied, “Well the issue was you were,
yvou had met, um—”. BURKE said, “T know that, Why was I able to hold it up? What did
they need [rom me?” Ward Employee 1 responded, “Um, well tl}ey needed their
. driveway permits énd everybhing signed off on.” BURKE said, “Well, I don’t remember
gigning off on any drivewa;,} permits.”* Ward Employee 1 regponded, “No. I never
remember seeing anything come in. Let me pet over there and see if there’s an actual
permit in the window. I'll get over there. Caugse | mean ah, yeuh. They know that they
were, I mean we, how many times, we had two different meetings with those people.”
BURKE replied, “Yep.” BURKE further aaid, “And thoy appear to be ah, operating the
“drive-through. So maybe they're remadeling the inside for the péuple that are going to
eat in, but it looks like cars are moving th mugh there and picking up their orders . ., |
But I don’t know how that can happen il vhoy don't huve a driveway permit.” |1 helicve

BURKE instructed Ward Empiuyee 1 to interfere with tho operation of the restaurant,

1 Ay noted above, the driveways in the vicinity of the restauwrani were pre-existing
driveways that were built several years carlier, and no new permit concerning these

driveways vequired Aldcrmanie approval. Nor were these driveways inchided as u part

of the remodeling at the restanrant.
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based on the pretext of the vestaurant not having a driveway pormit, when in fact
BURKE zought to extort Company A becanse Individusl A and Individual B had not
provided BURKE with tax worlk for his lirm.] Ward Employee 1 responded, “No. If they
don't have any . ... We'll get on ‘em.”

34, - law enforcemont has inlerviewed Tndividual D, an cmployee of Company
A who hus 2 scnior regional munagerial role in Company A, and is responsible for
overaeeing Lthe np.era,t-iun of approximately 162 restaurants in the Chicagoland area.
Individual D advised law enforcemen! that on or about Octobér 24, 2017, Individual D
recelved a telcphu’n'e eall from Ward Employvee 1, who told Tndividual D that “the office”
(which Individnal D understood to be areference to BURKE's office) never gave consent
[ar or approval of the plans for the remodeling of the restaurant, and therelore work
necded to halt at the loeation.

35.  HEmail eommunications supplied by Individual B reflect that on or about
October 24, 2017, Individual 1) sent an arnail to Tndivichial B and others concerning Ward
Employee T's telephone esll. Individusl I wrote in part as follows:

Hello all

I received a call today from Alderman Burke's office
regarding [restanrant identilieation redacted] under remodel.
[Ward Employee 1) (Alderman’y agsistant) #aid their office
never signed off on the plans and the special use permit, He
asled we ghut the job down until we meet with them with the
GC |gencral coniractor] to review all proper permil
documentation and the plups, |Company A employee name
redacted] is scheduling this meeling ARAT. 1 asked [geneval
comtractor] Lo shut the job down for novw until we see what
else thesc guys are looking for to get the project moving

again. I know these guys are very powerful and they ean
male life very difficull for all of our Chicago slores and I do
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nol want fo take this risk st this time until we meet and
discuss everything.

36.  Individusl A advised luw enforecement that, as a result of ﬂlliﬁ request, the
remodeling of the restaurant was halted,

37.  On or shout October 25, 2017, at approxi mafelj,r 6:59 p.on, (Session #7537),
BURKE, made an outgoing call on the Target Phone to Ward Employee 1. During the
call, BU RKE and Ward Employee 1 disenssed playing “hard hall” with Individual A and
Individual B. Specilically, RURKE said, “T forgot o agk you, I'm just gonna be driving
past the [restaurant]. What, what was the result of your ingquiry?” Ward EﬁpIU}fee 1
responded, “They're coming In tomorrow with all their, um . . .. They shut down the

| construction. They're coming in tomorrow to try to show us all 'their. permits and the big
thing is, you know, I mean they can go and got their building permits, bul where’s their
drivewsy permitz?” BU&KP?- said, “And, and they didn’l h-a‘r-'e their. .. didn't they have
their permits posted on the site as they're supposed to?” Ward Employee 1 (speaking
over BURKE) said, “Dri‘-,_*e‘ﬁ;'a}f permits . .. driveway permits. Yeah, huf.like I said
yesterday, 1 couldn’t see il thoy were posted or not b:.ﬂca.use they had that big green
construction fenee out there that was out thore. But my big thing is, if thejr h:-:wen’t
transferred vver the drivewsy permits, it"s illegal” BURKE replied, “Yeah,” Ward
imployee 1 s:::\id, “Y ou kmow, but, hey, liey, not only, and I'm gonna fut ‘am out there and

say, ‘By the way, not only does the eonstruction has [sic] to siop, the business hasg to
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stop® BURKE .sa.i_d, “All the other licenses that they have” Ward Eﬁlpinyee 1
(speaking m_.-‘er.-BURKE) eontinued, “You guys never transferred over,” BURKE =aid,
“Yap . . . All the olher licenses they bave,” Ward Employee 1 responded, “Yeah, now
that group—did they cver get baa::k-tu you—" [I believe Wurd Kmployee 1 asked BURKE
whether the Company A or its representatives had contacted BURKH tﬁ arrange for h_1'==
law firm to receive tax work.] BURKH gald, “Never.” Wurd Employec 1 cn_ntinued, “_
after your, ah—" BURKE replied, “N cver.” Ward Employee 1 cnntf_nﬁed, “—meehhg
at Beverly [Country Club]?” BURKE said, “Never. 1 ook ‘cm filldiﬁduﬂl A und
Individual Bl to lunch I was playing nice with ‘ern—mnever gol back.” [T helieve BU'RK]]
explained to Ward Employee 1 that Individual A snd Individual B never contacted
BURKH ahout providing legal work Tor his private law firm us BURKE desired. ] Ward
Employee 1 said, “To tell vou the Lyuth, I'm at Beverly right now.” Later in the
 conversation, Ward Employee 1 said, “You kr}nw, they're, you know, but that-gi_'nup never
gut.bm:k Lo you, right?’ BURKE responded, “Never.,” Ward Elppmyee 1 replied, “All

right, I'll play @5 hard ball aa I can.” BURKE said, “Olay.”

'3 13ased on documents produced by individuat A and Individual B, the drive-through for

the restaurant eontinned to operate during the remodeling of the internal seating area of

the restaurant, including during the time period while the remodeling was halted.

1= As noted above, BURKY met with Individieal A and Individoal B on or about June 14,
2017, in order Lo 2olicit tax business from thenl Law enforcement surveillance obsesved
BURKE aitending a meeting at the restaurant on or abont June 14, 2017, and thereadlor,
gurveillance observed a vehicle azzociated with BURKE parked in the parking lot of the
Beverly Country Club. Individual A explained that during lunch at the country clab,

BURKE made an unsolicited pitch for tax work (veferred Lo in thiz conversation by

BURKLY a8 “ took ‘em to lunch . . . T was playing nice with ‘em™).
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- 88, Individual D advised law enforcoment thal a/he attended 2 meeting at
BURKE’s ward office on or about October 26, 2017, Those in attendance included, but
were not lim.ii;ed to, Ward Employee 1, Individual D, and the general contractor on the
remodeling project. The purpose of the roeeting was to identify what needed to be done
to resume the remodeling prcrject. During the meeting, Ward Employee 1 asked
Individual D ahout the ownership of the restaurant, and Individual D advised t]_uat
Company A, led by Individual A, owned the restauvant. Ward Employee 1 told the
generaﬂ contractor that Ward Employee 1%s office never signed-off on the plans granting
approval for the projecl. Ward Emplr_.ryee 1 asked the gencral contractor where his/her
cumpan;n:* was based and told the general contractor that there were local workers
available to fill the jobs on the remodeling project. Individnal D recalls Ward Employee
1 “drilling” the g;z_nerdl contractor on this point. Ward Employce ireitare'Ll;ed not having
scen “the plang,” including the drivewsy permit. Individual D believed the reference to
a driveway permit wad a'refﬁrcnce to # special-use permit for the restanrant’s drive-
through. After the mesting, In_dividual 1) advised Individual I that Individual B would
need to speak to BURKE’s ollice in. order b0 resolve the w;_:rk stoppage.

29, Individual D advized law cnforcement that, during the course of remodeling
approximately twelve to eighteen other restuurants in the Chicago arca, Individual 1)
had never seen an Alderman’s offieg intervene in a remodeling prﬁjeét becsuse the

Alderman’s office needed to 2ee or approve the plans for the project. [ndividual T} felt

1 Based on information provided by the architect (who is dizcussed in greater detail below),
the restaurant had alveady oblained a special use permif for the use of the drive-through.
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intimidated by Ward Employee 1 because the subcontractor work was not being
performed by “locals.” Individual 1) further believed thut the Alderman’s office wanted
something unspecified that went, beyond the issues related Lo the remodeling.

40, Uﬁ or about Octobar 26, 2017, the arehitect for Company A sent an email to

multiple individuals within the City of Chicago’s Depariment of Buildings, soecldng their '

assistance, Specifically, the architect wrote in part:

HELLO Pleage assist. .. .. Sec below as my client just
informed me thal Alderman Burke has shut this job down.
Thiz is yuile disturbing considering that ali of our restavrant
projects follow the same process thru DOB [Department of
Buildings| for permit submittal and Zoning approval. The
_ process determines if a subject property has or does not have
a Special Use in place for the Drive Thru part of the
regtanrant. . . . This does not seem right that Burke can shut
this project down considering wo have our permit. Flease
" advise as soon a8 you can. Thank you '

41.  Law enforcement subgequently interviewed the architect. The architect

explained that s/he had worked as an ayehitect in the Chicago area for approximately 35

vears, and had worked on projects i;hrnugﬁuut the Midwest and East Coast, The -

architect explained that s/he had. done architecture work on restauranty throughout the
City of Chieago and in various wards., The architect explained that the Cily of Chicago's
' Deparim 91.‘11: of Transp ortation usually monitors driveway permits, and the archilect had
never heard of an Alderman 1rackitg drivewsy pelmifs. The architect further noted that
s/he had never recéived a “stop work” order on any of his/her projects from any other
Alderman and ]:mﬂ never received a “stop work” order as & result of a drivewuy pevfnit

izsue.
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42, On or about October 27, 2017, a supervisory employee within. the
Department of Buildings, referred to hercin as DOB Employee 1, advised the architeet
vid email as follows: “I see no DOB | Department of Buildings] issues eorrently in our
gystem. Pleage contact the owner and Aldeymun.”

43. law enforcement subscquently intervicwed DOB Employee 1% DOB
Kmployee 1 bag worked within the Department of Buildings for approximately fifteen
years, is familiar with the building pormit procesy; and currently holds a supervisory
position within the depaftmellt, 1301 Employee 1% attontion was direcled to the email
communications referenced irnmediately above. DUH Hmployee 1 explained that after
s/he received the architect's email, s/he conducted a E:;F!ﬂl"ﬂh of .a computer datahaﬂ;:é
utilized by the Department of Buildings, and had determined there wag no stop work
order concerning the remodeling taking place at the restaurant. DOB Employee 1 was
also unaware of any case in which an Alderman could bring a halt to remodeling .WDI'I{
authorized by i:i]e 'lJ_cpai'tmeﬁt of Bufldings.” Furthermore, DOB Employee 1 advizsed
{he Department of Buildings would genm'a.ﬂy not shut down a project for months simply
due to the absence of a permit for & pre-existing driveway. DOB Employee 1 advised
that, while the Deparlment of Buildings might usc a driveway permit issue to bring

attention to another problem with a project, il was not the practice of the department to

i DOB Employce 1's interview was condueted pursuanl to @ proffer letter that precluded

' the use of DOB Employee 18 statementa uguinst DOB Wmployee 1 excopt in certain
narrow circumatances.

" DOB Employee 1 ullowed that an Alderman’s opinion was imporiant, and that an

Alderman conld communieate comcerns regarding a eomstraclion project to the
Department. of Buildings theongh a Haison.
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uge drivewusy permits to “jum up” a project. DOB Employee 1 was not aware of any

issues with the restanrant ihat would have eansed any deviation from this practice. I

therefore Eelieve that the information i.:l'ﬂ?i_dﬂﬂ by DOB Empluj,ree 1 confirms that ’ghe
actinﬁ tuken by BURKR and Ward Employec 1 was prelextual and done :F.m' the purpose
of extorting Company A"
44,  Records oblained from the City of Chicago reflect that on or about October
27, 2017, at approﬁmate] ¥ 11:55.51,.111., an ingpeetor for Lhe City of {thcagn.’s Department
of Tr:mspnrtaﬁoﬁ, 1"efe_r+réd to as DOT Employee 2, izsued a citation t::; Company A for
not having a dﬁvew#y permit for one of several drivewsys adjacent to the restaurant.
“4h,  DOT Kmployee 2’3. City Milcage Reimbursement Form for October 27,
2017, which was obtained from the City .nf []hicag'@,. reflects that DOT Employee 2
traveled to EIIRKE’IH ward office, Iocuted at 2650 West 51t Street, minutes before she

issned the citation to Company A. Specificaliy, these records refleet that DOT Employee

2 arrived at B[,TRKE’S ward office at approximately 11:05 a.m., and stuyed there for '

fifteen minutes, The stated purpdse of the Lrip was “Ald vigit/{[name of i'_%ldermani'f: gtaff
member redacled]” The mileage reeords reflect that after making an intermediate gtop
at 11:35 a.m., DOT Employee 2 then headed to the mstaumnt., arvived there at 11:56

s.m,—the same Lime that appeéars on the eitation issued by DOT Employee 2. Ina column

18 Law enforcement has inlervicwed other individnals who are employed within the City of
Chicago’s Department. of Buildings and the Department of Transportation. Based op
thege interviews, it is not ordinury for the Department of Transportation or any other
cntity (swch us an Alderman or ward employee) to stop construclion on & project
condueted pursuant to a permit issued by the Deparlment of Buildings.
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ream*vgd for providing a reason for LFB.VC].'ILG the regtayrant, DOT Emplc:yeé 2 mclﬁded
the number of the citét[un g'he iﬁﬁl]ﬂfi to Compuny A,

46. Records concerning the use of the If:ellular teléphuﬁe iggued to DOT
Employee 2 by the City of Chicagn refloct that on Oefober 27, 2017, al approximately

11:34 3., approximately six minutes before DOT Employee 2 arrived al the restaurant,

DOT Employee 2 received an incoming call from telephone number (773) 471-1470 that '

lasted five minutes. I lmow, based on interceptions conducted over the Target Phone,
that telephone number (773) 471-147t} is associuted with BURKE's wurd office.

F. - Company A's Efforts to Expeditiounsly Obtain a Driveway Permit are
Thwarted by BURKE’s Staff, including Ward Employee 1.

;47. Email ecommunications produend by Individual A and Individual B refllect
that on or shout Nﬁvemher 13, 2017, the architeet advised Individual I3 that s/he would
b.e g_ning to City Hall the following day to apply for a driveway permit.,

48.  According to records m.mi;ai.ned by the Department of Transportation,
Company A applied for 4 driveway permit on o about November 14, 2017, for three pre-
- exiuting driveways adjacent to the restanrsni,'” |
49, A(.:cc;rdiﬁg 1o information provided by DOT Employee 1, an applicant

secking a permit for a pre-existing driveway must first obtain approval from the

1 Two of these driveways were included in the permits thal were izsued in 2012 and 2015, '

that are dlseugeed in paragraph 28 above. Ume of the pre-existing driveways was not
included in any prior permit, and wag on tand owned by Company A, The architect advized

. law enforeement that a/he belicved the shit-down of Lhe remodeling project baged on the
abecnce of these driveway pormita was baseless, and that the driveway permits were used
a8 a means to hold up the remodeling, The archifect sought o permit for all three
driveways—including the two pre-existing driveways that were a part of the 2015
pormit--in order to satisfy BURKHK and o allow the remodeling to eoatinue.
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Department of Zoning. Records obtained from the Gity nFChicagﬁ reflect that the Zoning
Department approved Company A's driveway permit appheation on November 14, 2017,
the zame day it was submitted.

A

50.  Asnoted earlier, on October 27, 2017, DOT Employee 2 issued a citation to

Company A. Records obtained from Individual A and Individual B reflect that on or -

about November 27, 2017, an employee from the Depatiment of Transportation wrote an
employee of Company A an email notifying Company A of a hearing on the citation,
scheduled for Deccomber 18, 2017, that “flhe respondent should bring any drivewsy
permit information, such as driveway permit or proof of application for driveway permit,
to the hearing, Be advised that all corporations must | sic] 1'epreéénted by an attorney.”
51.  On or about November 29, 2018, Iaw enforcement executed a search
warrant at BURKE's ward office, located at 2650 West h1st Street, in Chicago. During
{he search, agents vecovered a hard copy of an email dated November 23, EGIT,.smd
addressed from DOB Employee 2 to an AQL account.® The email read in part as Tollows:
Hi ifirst name of Ward Employee 1]-
Good Kvening,.
It’s been very nice working with you on this driveway matter.
The driveway permit packet has been submitted by
[architect] and.is in the process of heing evaluated by CDOT.
There are simply side notes on the application concerning the
second and third driveways. Please find the eopy of the

commmercial  driveway pormit  application  and  the
accomparying photographs in the firgt attachment. 1 noticed,

A Two hard copics of this email were recovered {rom the ward office. One copy was
recovered [rom an internal office within the ward office. Based on informaution provided
by a ward staff member, thig offied was utilized by Ward Kmployee 1 and another ward
stufl member. - '
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H2,

upon looking at the ‘ATTA/ACSM Land Title Survey,” that
there is evidently an Fosement Agreement eoncerning the
ingress and egress for bolh parccl 2 and parcel 8, 1
highlighted the details for you. .. .. I hope this information
assists you and Alderman Burke thus far. Iwish you & yours
a beautiful evening! '

[Name redacted]

- Another series of hard copy emails recovered during the search of the ward

office eoncerned correspondence botween s member of BURKE's staif and DOT

Hmployee 3. The stall member asked for and reccived DOT Employee 8's teiephnnc

mumber, and then wrote the :I."r::ullm&ring to DOT Employee & on or about November 30, 2017

at 940 a.m.;

Ms. [name redacied]:

' Thank you Tor the information. We've been trying to call you,

can you please eall the office go you can speak with [Ward

- Employee 1] al your earlicst convenience?

Thank you,

[staff member name redacted]
Alderman Edward M. Burke | 14h Ward
[email address redacied|

2650 Wesl hlst Strect

Chicago, IL 60632

" [telephone numbers redacted]

ik
Deh,

that on or ahout November 30, 2017, at approximately 1:2% p.m. (several hours after the -

Email communiestiong produeed by Individual A and Individual B reflect

cmail ¥elerenced in the preceding paragraph), the architecl advised Individual B. that

BURKE’s Aldermanic office was altempting to hold up the issuance of the driveway

permit. Sp&aciﬁmliy! the architeet wrole in pertinent part:
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To update you as you know, I have applied fur the drive
permit for this location. I have known the driveway person i
see at City Hall for a lung time. Twas asking for an update on
our drive permil and she now tells me thal the Alderman’s
office has called the drive dept on this to question or further
hold on this. This is really not right, We need to send a letter
to the Alderman’s office stating that we have attempted many
times to resolve this and have eatlod to ask lor a meeting, If
we can’{ get further eommunication, we will be startingup the
joh again by X date because there are no Dept of Buildings
holds on this. Whal ave your thoughts?™

54, Individual B advised law enforcement that s/he received the above-
veferenced cmail. Individual B noted that it was BU RKE's office that demanded that
Company A obtain a driveway permit, but it was BURKESs staff that was stopping
Company A from getiing this permit. Individual B gtated that s/he holieved at this point
that BURKE was doing something “very shady and nappropriate,” and that BURKE
wanted {0 reccive tax work,

55,  IEmail communications ohtained from the architect reflect that on or about
December 11, 2017, the architect received an email from DOT Employee 4, who wrote:

Good morning, As u follow up, the Alderman’s office spoke
with [DOT Employee 3] and asked for this permit to be put on
hold pending questions sbout the casement?

I believe they are requosting that 1he casement needs to be
updated? That you cannot use the old easement that was
directed to an enfity that no longer has interest in this

property? I am handing the file to my Supervisor [DOT
Employee 1} and you can follow up with [DOT Employee 1]

El "The architeet advised law enforcement that OB Employee 2 wag the individual referved
to us the “drivevray person” in this email. T.aw enforcement interviewed DOR Kmployee
2, who had no recollection of telling the architect this information. DOB Employee 2 also
did not recall commupicating wilth Ward Employee 1 about the driveway permit issue. As
noted ahove, DOB Emplayec 2 wrote & detafled emaill to Ward Employee 1 about the
drivewny permit. (OB Employes £ did ol have an opportunity to review this cmail
during his/her interview.)
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on the procegging of this permit pending eonversations with
the Alderman for this ward, Thank yon.

56.  The architcet responded to DOT Employee 4 b:g.-'. email on or about
December 12, 2017, at approximately T:28 a.m,, and wrote: “Thanks | DOT Employee 4].
This is vidiculous, I have never had {hig happen before und we have a meeting today with
the Aldermar;. "Thanks for the update."2

537. Based on the foregoing, I helieve that members of BURKE's staif,
including Ward Emplovee 1, uunt;-mtéd. the Departiment of Transportation for the purpose
of hindering and obatructing the a.ppxﬁva] of the driveway permil sought by Company A
after the applieaﬁnn was filed on N ovember 14, 2017 |

58.  During the search of BURKHK's ward office, agents also recovored a
memorandum dated December 12, 2017, addressed from Ward Employee 1 to “EME,”
which I understand to be a reference o BUREKE. The memorandam concerned the
remudeli_ug of the restaurant. Tt read a5 follows:

Met with mame redacted] of [restaurant] regarding their
remodeling spproximately a year and a half ago.

Met with new ownership of [restaurant], [Company Al at site
this past summer. (ITad lunch with thom at Beverly)

They were reminded az new uwners that they were required
Lo update driveway permils, ete, prior to construction,

They submitted their plans to 00, Building Dépa.ri;_me'nt_
without doing g0,

= The architecl adviced law enforeement that he wanted to attend the meeting with
RURKE to provide techniea] knowledge about the pevmitting process, bul was not
invited.
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We stopped constriction on the site and it is still on hold while
~ the Department of Trangportation reviews the driveway

permits that were submitted mid-November.

Footnote: They have hired a congtruetion company {rom New

Jersey to do the remodeling. Architect is a local from |eity

redacted], [hame redacted].

1 reeall that you mentioned to them sinee they are out of [eity

redacied] they should think about local legal representation

for the zoning matters and so forth.

G. BURKE Again Corruptly Solicits Tax Business for His Law Firm from
Individual A and Individual B.

59, Individual A advised law enforecment thal Individual A and Individual B
traveled t.;:r Chicago Lo meet t&_rith BURKE in December 20175 At the time of the
meeting, the restaurant remodé]jng pmjccf was still halted, and Individual A eame to
meet with BURKHR in order to get BURKE to agree Lo allow the remodeling project to
continue. Individual A understood ab the time that, in order to resulv_e the isgues with
the r:'*emndeling project, Individual A weuld need to hire BURKE's law firm to .dn
F.l“upﬂ_lr‘ty tax work. Tndividual A also wnderstood t.hat BURKYE had shut down the
1‘emude] hecause his law firm har_i not yet been hired.

60.  During the meetiﬁg, BUREE ssked why he had not received tax business.
Individual A advised BUREKF that Individual A had talked to _a. representative of

Company A that handled property tax mutlers (hereinaftér Individual B), and had told

o Tndividual B confirmed that he made plans for Individual A and Individual I3 o meet with
BURKE on or about Decoember 12, 2007, the date of the memorandum deseribed abhove.

Individual A and Individual B identified the loeation of the meeting and stated that it was

a lunch meeting, Records obtained from ihiz location do not refleet lunch charges on
December 12, 2017, under BUHRKE's name, hut do reflect charges for drinks under
BURKE's nume later that afternoo.
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that individual to get the process sturled to hire BURKE's firm. Tondividual A guve
RURKEX the contact information for Individual E. Individual A believed that there was
some digcusgion during the mgeting of the remodeling of the veslaurant, but did not :L_'ﬂr:all
the specifics of the discussion® However, Individual A recslled that BUREE said he
would tr;;r. to resvlve the issue and geil; the remodeling project starled again. Inaddition,
BURKE encouraged Individual A and Individual B to gt invelved with other pnlitiefans
in Chieago, und asked them to atlend a fundraiser for another local politician.

| 61, | Individual A explained to law enforcoment thal she agr;aed Lo give
BURKT tax business for EURKE’B private law firen in order to avoid any further delays

in the remodeling of the restunrant, Individual A stated that y/he did not want to lose

any more money on the project, and it was clear Lhat BURKE was going tointerfere with

the remodeling project until BURKE received property tax buginess for his law firm,
Individual A stated higher beliéf that BURKE had shmt down {he remodeling of Lhe
restaurant because BURKE had not-received tax business, and thal the driveway peymil,
iszue was just a pretext. Individusl A stated that afler s’he gavé BURKE assurances
that BURKE would receive tax business, the remodeling projoct was allowed to continue,
which further demonstrated to Individual A that the projoet had been halted becanse

BURKE"s firm had not been hired 2

“ Individual B stated that there was only a bricl digcussion about the driveway permit
during the meeting, and that approximately #5% of the conversalion wags about the real
catate tux work BURKLS wished to receive,

£ Individual B stated that what BERKE did at the meeting wag not above board, and that
the stop work order, the reguest that the company obtain a drivewsy permit, and the
threat to hold approval of Lhe drivewny petmit were all designed to get BURKE tax work.
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62.  Acecording to Tndividnal A, the halt of the restaurant remodeling pfﬁject

had negative economic consequences ou Company A in that it decreaged sales at the

restaurant. Specifically, the halt of the remodeling delayed Lhe opening of the dining area

of the restaurant for months, resulting in » losg of revenne.®

H. BURKE Instruets City Employee 1 to Contact a Representative of
Company A for the Purpose of Securing Tax Work for His Private Law
Firm.

63, Fmail communications obtuined firom Individual A and Individnal B reflect

that on or about Decernber 18, 2017, at approximately 10:03 a.m., City Fmployce 1 wrote

to Individual E as follows, using BURKE's personal AOL cmail account:™

Alderman Burke recenily met with |Individual A} and he

ingtructed him to reach out regarding real estute tax appeal

work in the metropolitan Chieago aren. We just wanted 1o

confirm this was the hest method to veach you. Alderman

Burke can be reached either via this emuil (lemail address

redacted]), hiy office number which {s 812-744-3380, or his cell
. phone which is [telephone number redacted].

- "Fhanlk you.

[ Name redacted]
Asaistant to Aldermun Burke

pi

Aecording to Individual B, remoileling of the restaurant was halted between late October
2017 and January 2018, a_nd this delay hud a major effect on saleg and epsh flow at the
restanrant. The halt to romodeling delay ed the opening of the restaurant dining area for
months, and as a result the restavrant ordered lezs food to adjust to lower rales volume.
Individual 13 advised that the vestuurant roceived supplies for its operation [rom a
distributor in Wisconsin that delivers to the Chicagn area. Individual D further adviscd
that, during a remodeling project, when only arestanrant’s drive-throngh wus operational
{us wag the euse hoere), theve was gencrally a forty to {lily percent fecine in sakes,
Accordingly, it is reasonable to believe that the prolonged delay in the completion of the
remodeling of the restanrant resulled in a rF-dut'tmn of itoms E-‘l'lpphFd to the restaurant,
therehy affecting inferstate commcree.

I know, based on interceptions conducted over the Target Phone, that BURKI has
provided this cmail address to third parties as u means of commmnicating with him,
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312-T44-3580F%

64,  Email communiecationg obtained frorn the architect reflect that on or about
December 13, 2017, at approximately 1:01 p.m., the architect wrote DOT Employee 4 as
follows:

HI [DOT Employee 4] - |'W41t1 Employee 1] at Alderman

Burke’s office just called und safd all is cleared up. He stated

he called [DOT Employee 8]. Can you see if the drive permit

can now be issued? thanks

65, On or about Deeember 15, 2017, at approximately 12:30 p.m, (Session

#8630), BURKE made an outgoing eall on the Targef Phone to City Employee 1, located
in his City Hall office. During the call, BURKY asked City Bmployee 1if s/he had made
contuct with Individual E. Specifically, BURKE aszked, “Were you able to muke contacl

- wwith that guy from the [redacted] company?” City Bmployee 1 responded, “No, he didn’t

answer me back, . .. I sent him an email from :.,rnui' ermail actually too and he has not

answered.” .H URKE said; “Try again City Emplﬂ;me 1 responded, “You Iwmﬁt me to
email him again?” BURKE replied, “Yeah” Uii;y Kimployee 1 said, “Okay.” |

66.  HKmail commmmications obtained from Individual A and Individual B reflect
{hat on or about December 15, 2017, City Employee 1 wrote to Individual E as follows,
uging BURKE’s personal AQL emai account: |

Hi [name redacted],

= I know based on publicly available information that telephone number (312) 744-3380 15
associated with BURKWR City Hall office. ''he City of Chicage’s Governmental Kithics
Ordinance provides in part as follows: “No offielal or cmployee shall engage in or permit
the unsuthorized nge of any real or persnmal properly owned or leased by the City for City
hsiness.” See City of Chicago Government Ethics Ordinanee, Yunicipal Code of Chicago,
Chapter 2, Rule 2-156-060.
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67,

I am just following up on the email below.
Thanks,

[Name reducied]

Asgsiztant to Alderman Edward M. Burke
312-T44-3580 '

In respunge to the preceding email, Individual B indicated on Friday,

December 15, 2017, that s/he would be “reaching out on Monday,” City Employee 1 in

turn roplied to this email the following Monday (December 18, 2017} as follows: “Vhank

you, We look forward to hearing from you today.” Later that day, Individual K

regponded and set oul the terms Compuny A and its affiliates had with thelr “current tax

congaltant.”

68.

On or shout December 19, 2017, Individual E sent the following email Li}.

BURKE's personal email address:

(i3

TURKH reccived an incoming call on the Target Phone from City Employee 1, During

[Name of City Employee 1 redacted),

Can you please confirm that [ am sending all IL loealions or
only Cook Counly locations. Also, uny other info I need to
zend? ' '

Thanls You

[Name redacted]

The Department of Transportation Issues a Driveway Permit for the
Restaurant and BURKE Confirms He is to Be Sent Tax Work for All
Illineis Loeations Operated by Company A.

On or about December 19, 2{}1'?, at approximately 1:15 p.m. (Session #8698),

the eall, City Employee 1 informed BURKE of her reecipt of the email in the preceding

parageaph, Specifically, City Kmployee 1 said, “Um I just wanted to see, I got an email
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frum the [restaurant| tax puy and he's aakin'g il he's sending all llinois locations or only
Cook County.” BURKE responded, “Umm, all Ilineis locations. Well, I'm relatively

certain they're just metrbpulit;m,” City Emplavee 1 replied, “Chicagoland area, yeah.”

BURKE said, “Cook [County], Will [County]” {ity Employee 1 said, “Lake | County].”

BURKE said, “Lal&e, umm, DuPage [County|, ete.” City Kmployee 1 respm_'ldcd, “Okay,
gounds .guﬂd.” BURKE said, ;‘ﬂll*ight,” City Emplayee 1 gaid, “Perfect, thank you.”

70.  Email comnmunications uhl,a.ined from Individual A and Individual B reflect
..that on or about December 19, 2017, City Employee 1 wrﬂtﬁ to Individual ¥ as follows,
nsing BURKE's personal AQL cmail aceount, and advised that the tax work “would be

for all IL locations.”

71.  Records obtained from Individual B and the Department of Transportation

I"E.!ﬂﬂﬂt thit Company A's spplication for a driveway permit was approved on December
19, 2017, and then was issued several we ek later, after the driveway permil fee was paid.

72.  As noted earlier, Individum- A advised law onfnrcemeni; that, during
Individual A and Il’!dl"i'ldud.]. B'g moetmg wilh BUREKER, BURKE asked them to ‘lfIfI*l”ld a
political fundraiser for another politiclan. According to Individual A, IndlvldUa,l A feltit
necessary to attend, or at least piven donation becanse, otherwise, BURKE would not
Rupport Individual A’y efforts to do business in Chieago, including at the restaurant.”

Individual A advised that Individual A made a $10,000 donation to & campaign committee

= Individual ¥ eonfirmed that individual A wade the donation because they felf they had to
make the donution in order to ensure that therc would be no further problems with
BURKE,
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for the politician, which wag subscquently reduced to within the eampaign contribution

limit of $5,600.%" Individual A advised BURKE s/he was not able Lo attend the event due

to bad W.eather..

73, On or about Januérjr 21, 2018, at approximately 12:54 p.m. (Sesyion #IT84),
BURKHE made an oulgoing ea]i on the Target.Phune .tu Ward Employee 1. During this
call, BURKE and Ward Employee 1 -discngsed the stating of 1he restaurant remodeling
project, Specifically, Ward Employee 1 said, “Anything on your end working? BURKE

said, “Um, the guy from uh, [city redacled] asked me-what he needs to do to gel going

spain on the [restaurant| I thowght we gave them um, clearance on that?” Ward

Employee 1 said, “I did. T called his wm, architect [name redacted] immediately and he
thanked me and he said, ‘..-"'Lppmciate everything you've done.” And | says, ‘it’s clear to
tuke off.) He says, Thank you. He says, Tl be right at it.” Right? So I, Imean thut's a
month aga.” BURKR said, “And it's sitting there with uh, nothing going on” Ward
Employee 1 said, “Well 1 mean I, immediately lhe same day I had talked to the guy

[architect name redacted]. And I got it, ul, talking about uh, thjné's starting uh, I saw

they brought it in ‘cause I'd gotten a eall because they were going to start with the sub

zero they puﬂed' off om it a little bil. | saw they got their hulldozers at um, Archer and

Kedric for the Winirust Bank to go up.” BURKE said, “Okay.” Ward Employee 1 said,

o Bazed on publie inforrhation disseminated by the Illinnis State Board of Klections, it
appears that Individual A’s contribition waa Hmited by law Lo $5,600. Law enforcement
has reviewed records filed by the commitiee n guestion. They do not reflect a
contribution made by Individual A, although correspondence provided by Individual A
and Individusl B rotlects that the commillee confirmed the contribution was made.
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“Thét’a gonna start. So. We ghall see. I'll give {hat [architect name redacted] another

call tomorrow then”

J. After the Remodeling of the Restaurant is Completed, Company A and
Its Affiliate Do Not Give Tax Business to BURKE’s Law Firm.

74.  Records provided by Individual A und Individual B reflect that in early to
mid~2ﬂ18,. Individual E exchanged email eorrespondence with an allorney from
BURKE’s law ﬁr.m, KB Attorney 1, who sought‘ to finalize the terms of Klafter & Burke's
- retention pursnant to a contingent fee ag‘feemeﬂt. Tindividual E emailed I'm‘IiVi.r.lual Aon
or about May 12, 2018, and asked Individual A: “fh_"e we done with whateve‘r.-we needed
ﬁ'ﬂlﬁ Alderman Burke? I prefer nol lo give them our portiolio, I can say we signad-a 3
year cuntradl;- with ;nm' current sgent: who is very organized and nationally known and {
am happy with their resulis. These guys scem very disorganized....”

75, Individual A explained that after Individual A received (his email,
i'n’dividua.l A adviged Individual E that they had to hire BURKE's firm because they
needed to ensure that the restaurant could contimie in business without interference
from BURKL. |

76, Thereafter, Individual E suggestad in an email to KB Attorney 1 that
Company A would provide a limited number of prn.pwti'es for BURKE’s law firm to

perform tax services for.™

Al In an email to KB Attorney 1, Individual F identified an affiliated company of Company
A ag the compuny that would enter into a retention agreement with Klafter & Burke for
properties operated by Company A.
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7. Basedon records ubtained from Endividual A and Individual H, by mid-2018,
the remodeling of the restanrant was complete, Individual A explained that Individual
E did not want to give BUTRKL the tax busness; Individual E strung the process out
aver scveral months and did not end up giving BURKE's law firm any tax business.

78.  DBased on the foregoing, thore is probable eanse to believe that EDWARD
M. BURKE has attempted, b}?.cxtnrt.i_nn, to obatruct and affeet cnmﬁm‘ce, in violation of
Title 18, United States Code, -é%ectinn 14951, .

FURTHER AFFIANT SAYETH NOT.

EDWARD W. McNAMARA
Special Agent
Federal Bureoy of Trvestigation

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to
before me on Janmary 2, 2019
ke
=ity Y,
“"4-..4,..; : £ ¥ a
1 Veotwes e

SHEILA FINNEGAN/
United Stoates Magistrole Judge
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